
Tehama County
Wednesday August 13,2025 B:30 AM
Groundwater Commission
Meeting Minutes

ABSENT

Public Comment

Tehama County Board of Supervisors
Chambers

727 Oak Street, Red Bluff, CA 96080
https://teha macou nty. leg istar com/Cal

endar.aspx
Board Chambers

Commissioners: Martin Spannaus, City of Corning; Jeff Godwin, City of Red Bluff;
Hal Crain, City of Tehama; Kris Lamkin, El Camino lrrigation District; Todd Hamer,
Los Molinos Community Services District; Martha Slack, Rio Alto Water District; Liz

Merry District 1; Adam Englehardt, District 2; Seth Lawrence, District 3; Michael
Ward, District 4; David Lester, District 5;

Justin Jenson, Flood ControlA//ater Resources Manager; Lena Sequeira,
Administration

Call to Order / Pledge of A!legiance / Introductions

8:31 AM

Present Commissioner Martha Slack, Commissioner Kris Lamkin,
Commissioner Michael Ward, Commissioner Seth Lawrence,
Commissioner Hal Crain, Commissioner Maftin Spannaus,
Commissioner Adam Englehardt, and Commissioner Liz Merry
Commissioner Todd Hamer, Commissioner David Lester, and
Commissloner Jeff Godwln

Liz Merry retracted her previous comment expressing displeasure with a law firm. She clarified
that the firm provided the opinion on the 0,29 fee tax, but the county counsel chose not to
follow it. She stated that the firm did not per-form poorly; the decision was made by the county
counsel.

1, APPROVAL OF MINUTES 25-1406

a) Waive the reading and approve the minutes of the regular meeting held 6/1 112025

RESULT:
MOVER:

APPROVE
Martha Slack

SECONDER: Michael Ward

Commissioner Slack, Con.:missioner Lamkin, Commissioner Ward,
Commissioner Lawrence, Commissioner Crain, Commissioner

AYES:

Page '1 of 6



Spannarr s, Ccmm ;ssione i- E,rg lehardt, and Connr:r issicner N4erry

ABSEN l': Ccrilli"ii ;f,i'-riri:r H,;ir,et', l,rnttnissioiier Lestet, ai'r,l Cc,n:ttiissioner
r.:c0wtir

2. Estimated Funds Requireei Fnesentation 25-1416

Jenson proviCed an overrrievy of the b,-rdget presentation, stating that the rlccrrrtent was
prepared with guidan:e fror^n i:o^sr.'lteiris and irprit from staff. He :larifieC that the figures
reflect operating and compliance expenses anC provided a detailed explartatirr, of each
expense category.

Jenson explained that PMA-based activities are divided into separate budgets for Demand
Management and We!l Mltigaticr. l.centive programs will be funded thrcr:gh Demand
Management, while the we ll renlacerr"ent program will be funded through Well Mitigation.

Englehardt asked !f t,he funds r,rr;ll he held specificall),for weil replacernent.

Jenson stated that the funds are maintained in a buffer account designated for
Proposition 68 reimbursable expenses.

Englehardt asked if the yields from the account can be used to generate revenue.

Jenson confirmed that they can.

Discussion folloured regard!ng haseline cests fcr Demand Management.

Merry asked how $200 would address an acre-foot of water.

Jenson explained that the amount is a budgetary estimate rather than a fixed cost. He
described several scenarios usecl to develcp the estimate and hora, the nurnber was
determined.

Continued discussion took place on Demand Management and the overall budget breakdown.

Jenson reiterated that he is seeking input to present to the Board. He explained that
expenditures are similar across programs, with variations based on which program implements
the work. He discussed different approaches and suggested that incentirre-hased methods
may be more effective than imposing additional fees

Lester asked if the budget could be assessec! ann:ally.

Jenson responded that it represents a five-year estimate and can be adjusted as needed
based on actual conditions.

Crain asked how many total irrigated acres are in the county.

Jenson replied that there are approximately 130,0C0 acres.

Discussion followed regarding fees, costs, and alternative implementation pathways.

Page 2 of 6



Jenson commented that staff recommends breaking the budget into two sections

Discussion followed on the timeline of grant funding, the volumetric method, and the number of
wellheads.

Englehardt asked wlrether information is a,yailable frorn other subbasins.

Jenson responded tl'rat such data exists, but resulis var"y widel'y-. He encouraged ihe
Commissioners to begin considering feedback and comments to share with the
Directors, noting that each monthly meeting will build on the previous discussion until final
recommendatioris are reached.

Further discussion took place regarding municipai v/?i€t' systenrs and the potential community
impacts of charging iees.

Englehardt stated thai he woutd like a better uncierstanding of the assumptions behind the
$200 cost for incentives and the $400 cost for projects.

Jenson responded that these figures will become clearer as Froposition 68 funding
progresses.

Discussion followed on incentives and operating ccsts.

Jenson stated tl'iat, in nis opinior, the group has a clear ur;Cerstancling of their current position.

Ward asked about spending projections and share<i his perspective on long-term incentive
projects.

Jenson explained tha'i sorne elements uf ti-,e pia,n a:"e based or, ; t'ive-year lrcrizon and that
funding will accumulate over time. He emphasized beginning baseline incentive activities
immediately ano recc.itrnended that fee cciiecticn star'c on day cne.

Lawrence clarified that Well Mitigation funds ma_v rrot be needed for the first few years;
however, a clry year ccutd reqt ii'e the use cf aii av;riiable f,,noirrg.

Jenson agreed, statir,g that dry r,vells ',rv'ill Lre r','roie cnarliengrng ir': cerlain years.

Slack askec.l if the fee structt,re that is cleciciecl ,r;li remairr in place for five years.

Jenson stated that the fee will be set with a requirernent to review it every five years, at which
time adjustrnents nray be nrarJ,':.

Englehardt asked l-,ov'r tlte use cf suri'ace v,rater,;,,ilr oe !ncentiii,:od and whetner that could be
reflected in the fee structure

Jenson commented that by making grounciwater rnore expensiire, it creates an incentive to use
surface watei".

Lamkin stated that it rnav be useful to have an Frnrri,\,,sis of the fees showing what it would look
Page 3 of 6



like if the state were to assume rrianagemerit. Sihe reiterated that there would be no benefit, as

the costs would simply be paid io the state.

Jenson agreed that comparing ihe total volumeiric cost of each option would help inform

decision-making.

There was discussion about providing rneetii-ig materials in advance for commtssioner review.

Present Qeppn issic'rel l/iarlrra Slack, Comrnissioner Kris l-amiiin,

Commissioner Michael Ward, Comnrissioner Seih l-awrence,
Commissioner Hal erain, Commissioner Martin Spannaus,
Commissioner Adanr Englehardt, Commissioner David Lester, and
Commissioner Liz Merry

ABSENT Commissioner ToCc' F!:mer, and Ccmmissioner .leff Godwin

3. Standing Agenda ltems 25-1400

Groundwater Recharge
Jenson informed the group that outside legal services harre been contacted to provide

documentation on how to identily surfece u,rater supplies. This rnrill help the group understand
options for generating recharge An Acl Hoc corrrnittee is asscciated with this effort and will
compare available water with protects that use similar amounts'

Grant Status
Eddy Teasdale with LSCE provtded an update on the grant stalus. He hegan by explaining the
concept of DWR managing the sr-rbbasins, noting that if this were to occur, it would be

temporary.

Teasdale began by discussing Demancl Manag;ement and noted that there are two separate

tracks. The Corning Subbasin is reqr-rired to harre its demand management program in place

by 2027, while Tehama's must be completed by 2026. He presented the framework document
developed by CSAB and reviewed the next steps related to dernand management

There was discussion on the grant funds availalcle to support the framett,ork

Teasdale provided an update on ihe groundwater model and how it contributes to the periodic

evaluation. He stated that efforts are being made to combine the models for the Tehama
County and Corning subbasins, as it is inefficient to maintain separate models. He noted that it
would be beneficial to utilize a single model countywide and explained the concept of
extending the Tehama model into Glenn. Teasdale reviewed the different models currently in

use and discussed the benefits of having one unified model across the ccunty

There was discussion on the voluntary agreements in the Sacramento Valley

Teasdale stated that the GSPs have been approved and provided an explanation of the
periodic evaluation, noting that efforts are being made to simplify the process to reduce the
workload. He explained the difference between a periodic evaluation and an amendment, and
noted that the next periodic evaluation is due in 2027

Page 4 of 6



There was discussion on the process for submiiting an amendment

Teasdale recommended moving fonruard with the periodic evaluation, noting that a plan
amendment may be necessary in the future. He added that collecting additional data from the
newly installed wells over the next few years would be beneficial.

There was discussion on setting MOs and MTs.

Teasdale stated theit tlre GS[:'s were subnritted tc; DV/IR arid appi-oved but noted that there are
corrective actions io be addressed in the periodic evaluation. l-ie reviewed those requirements
Jenson stated thai this will be brought back to tlie board for corrsensus.

Teasdale explained that the funds are set to expire in 2026 ancj noted there is hope that some
may be exterrded ti,,'cugir tt^,at year, tirougir an officiai response, is still pending. Fie provided a
snapshot oi'projects requiring ieasibility studies, noiirrg t|rat aii but one have beert completed

Teasdale provided an update on the status of water"rights for groundwater recharge purposes.

An update cit water rigi:lsrluas provideci, nr.rtirrg inarsigiratures are still pending. Once
received, teripc,iai'y, wal-er rights fcr rechai'ge vvrll i;e establishea. it was explained that if a
declaration of imminent danger of floocj is issued in the county, there is an opporlunity to divert
flood flows. The poterrtial voiunres are significani ii stoiage opt:ons are available for later use,
and it was noted that Lrsing surface water vvill be rnore cost-effective than pumping
groundwater

Public Conrrnerrt

A resident asked ab'or.rt';,ie Bclvrran S,,bbasin.

Teasdale responoed tltai Bowrnan dici not i"eceirre furrciirig throrrgh this grant for Bowman-
specific pr<.:jects, ,.nrhich is wl"iy it is not shown on the niap.

Teasdale pro"rlceu a;', Lindale o;, iireweil rirorritr.rring video cam:+rasthatwere purchased. He
stated that funds are available to per{orm video inspections on ,ryells, and the intent is for
residents to Ie abie tc use l]ie carflerels on lheii own vveiiS

Jenson commented that another potential benei'rt is determining whether a well is actually dry
or if it has ccliapsec,

Hal asked aboui trre ccis".

Teasdale resporrded tlrat tlre c..rst is $9.C0C eacl', a:ici l'riied'ilta,t pi'eviously, a cor'ttractor had to
be hired each Lrrrru a video irrspection vvas neecjec!

Spannaus asked l'rL;r,",rrGep tl'ie earner"as go.

Teasdale staiec, ir,al. r',r: ileria:t,,rsi;tte earrreras (-;ar, icacir"lepirt": ol up to 1,00C feet

Demand Manageme:,1i
irage 5 of 5



Jenson provicleC an update, stating that a meeting has just occurred and the response list is

being reviewed. He noted that the STRAW proposal has been presented and hopes

discussions r,rrill begin with this group after ene more meeting

Well Mitigation
Jenson provided an update, stating tl-ra'i the firs'i working group meeting is now being

scheduled. He noted that a proposal is in place, so the meeting will focus on providing

commentary for potential changes

Annual Report
Jenson stated that this item was cotrered earlier in the meeting.

Outreach
Jenson informed the group that an outreach questionnaire email was sent out. The goal is to
gather input on public perceptions of the iss'.tes at hand He noted that once the data is
received, an update will be provided and emphasized that completing the survey helps guide

decision-making. Jenson asked attendees to promote the email, noting that the collected
information could be very helpful in the future.

Merry commented on the survey, stating that she had issues completing it

4. Commission Matters

None

Adjourn

9:58 AM

Page 6 of 6



n
//rl,/

UUI
/.

//
rw

/_APPRC\i ED

Chairperson

Teharfia Countli Groundrnrater Comrnrssion

btr Deputy


